
City of Norwood Young America - City Council Agenda 
January 23, 2016 – 6:00 p.m. Workshop; followed by EDA / City Council Meeting 

 
      1.   Call Meeting of City Council Workshop to Order 
               

2. Approve Agenda 
2.1 City Council Seat Interviews 
2.2 2018 Comprehensive Plan 

 
3. Adjournment 
 

 
      1.   Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 
              1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Approve Agenda 
2.1 Nomination and election of officers – Resolution 1701 
2.2 Approve minutes of November 28, 2016 

 
3. Adjournment 
 

      
1.   Call Meeting of City Council to Order 
 
2.   Approve Agenda 
 
3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment (Individuals may address the City 

Council about any non-agenda item of concern.  Speakers must state their name, address, and limit their remarks to three 
minutes.  The City Council will not take official action on these items, but may refer the matter to staff for a future report or direct 
that the matter be scheduled for a future meeting agenda.) 

 
a) Fire Department Year In Review Report 

 
4.   Consent Agenda (NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: All those items listed as part of the Consent Agenda will be approved by a single 

motion, unless a request to discuss one of those items is made prior to that time.  Anyone present at the meeting may request an 
item to be removed from the consent agenda.  Please  inform the Council when they approve the agenda for this meeting.)      
4.1 Approve minutes of January 9, 2017 meeting 
4.2 Approve payment of claims  
4.3 Economic Development Commission Appointment 

 
5.   Public Hearings 
  
6. Old Business 

6.1    Contract for 2017 Police Services 
6.2   Approve payment for Community Education Summer Programs  

 
7.   New Business 

7.1   Pavilion Architectural History Evaluation  
7.2   Ordinance No. 279, Amending Chapter 12, Section 1260, Signs 
7.3   Ordinance No. 280, Amending Chapter 6, Section 600, Nuisances  
7.4   Ordinance No. 281, Amending Chapter 12, Adult Uses 
7.5   City Council Appointment 
7.6   City Administrator Evaluation 
 

8. Council Member & Mayor Reports 
 
9.  Adjournment 

 
The following informational items have been included in the Council packet for informational purposes, council review and discussion.  
No action is required by the City Council:   
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS 
February 9  Senior Advisory Committee – 9:00 a.m. 
February 13 City Council – 6:30 p.m.  
February 14  Parks and Rec. Commission – 5:30 p.m. 
February 15 Planning Commission – 6:00 p.m.; Economic Development Commission – 6:30 p.m. 
February 27 City Council Workshop – 6:00 p.m.; EDA and City Council – 7:00 p.m. 







City of Norwood Young America - EDA Minutes 

November 28, 2016 – 7:00pm 
 

Council Members Present:  President Tina Diedrick, Craig Heher, Carol Lagergren, Mike McPadden, Dick Stolz 

City Staff Present:  City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk/Treasurer Kelly Hayes, City Attorney Jay Squires 

Others Present:  Charlie Storms, Bill Grundahl, Steve Curfman 

 

      1.   Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 

              1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 

Meeting was called to order by President Diedrick at 7:01pm. 

 

2. Approve Agenda 

Motion:  Lagergren to approve the agenda.  Second Stolz.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

2.1 Approve minutes of October 24 and November 14, 2016 

Motion:  McPadden to approve the agenda.  Second Heher.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

3. Adjournment 

Motion:  Lagergren to adjourn at 7:03pm.  Second Stolz.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

Respectfully Submitted,    

 

        __________________________________________________ 

        President 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Kelly Hayes City Clerk / Treasurer 

 























































City of Norwood Young America 

City Council Minutes 

January 9, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. – City Hall Council Chambers 
 

Council Members Present:  Craig Heher, Carol Lagergren, Mike McPadden, Dick Stolz 

City Staff Present:  City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk/Treasurer Kelly Hayes 

Others Present:  Charlie Storms, Mark Lagergren 

 

       1.   Call Meeting of City Council to Order 

      1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 

Lagergren called the meeting of the City Council to order at 6:32pm. 

 1.2   Oath of Office 

Lagergren, Heher, McPadden and Stolz took the Oath of Office. 

 

2.   Approve Agenda 

Motion:  McPadden to approve the agenda.  Second Heher.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment - none 

 

4.   Consent Agenda      

4.1 Approve minutes of December 12, 2016 meeting 

       4.2 Approve payment of Claims 

 Motion:  Stolz to approve the consent agenda.  Second McPadden.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion carried. 

          

5. Old Business 

 5.1 Resolution 2017-02, Amending 2016 Budget 

Motion:  McPadden to approve Resolution 2017-02 Amending 2016 Budget.  Second Heher.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion 

carried. 

Motion:  Heher to approve payment of these claims.  Second Stolz.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion carried.  

 

6. New Business 

6.1 Resolution 2017-01 - Organization of the City of Norwood Young America 

Reviewed Resolution 2017-01 – Organization of the City of Norwood Young America.  

 Signatory authority:  Lagergren and Stolz 

 Acting Mayor:  Stolz 

 Association of Carver County Elected Leaders (ACCEL):  Stolz 

 Local Government Workgroup:  Lagergren 

 Southwest Corridor Transportation Coalition:  McPadden 

 Highway 5 Corridor Study:  Stolz 

 Stiftungsfest Board:  McPadden 

 MnDOT PAC:  Lagergren 

 Personnel Committee:  Lagergren and Heher 

 Railroad Coalition:  McPadden 

 Safety Committee:  Stolz 

 Rental Housing License Appeals Board:  Heher, Bill Grundahl (Planning Commission Rep) 

 Planning Commission:  Heher 

 Economic Development Commission:  Lagergren, McPadden, Kaarin Foede (Chamber Rep) 

 Parks & Rec Commission:  Heher, JR Hoernemann (Planning Commission Rep) 

 Senior Advisory Committee:  Dick Stolz 

Motion:  Heher to approve Resolution 2017-01 Organization of the City of Norwood Young America (with the 

said updates).  Second McPadden.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

6.2 City Council Vacancy 

Due to Lagergren being voted in as the Mayor, her council seat is now available.  Past practice 

has been to accept applications, interview applicants and then appoint new member.   

Motion:  Stolz to post and accept applications for the open City Council seat until Thursday, January 19, 2017, 

and to hold interviews during the workshop meeting on Monday, January 23, 2017.  Second Heher.  Vote 4 – 0.  

Motion carried. 

 

6.3 Bolton & Menk 2017 Engineering Services & Fee Schedule 



Jake Saulsbury of Bolton & Menk presented their fee schedule for 2017.  There were minimal 

changes from 2016. 

 6.4 Liability Insurance Coverage Waiver 

With the City’s renewal of it Property and Liability Insurance, the Council is required to either 

waive or not waive the monetary limits set by state statute. 

Motion:  Stolz to not waive the monetary limits on municipal tort liability established by MN Statutes 466.04.  

Second McPadden.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion carried. 

  

6.5 Public Service Director Position 

Hayes reviewed the job descriptions of the newly created Public Services Director position.  

There are three different job descriptions based on the water and sewer licenses that the 

candidates may have.  The 2017 budget includes the expected wages of this new position. 

Motion:  McPadden to approve the Public Services Director job descriptions.  Second Stolz.  Vote 4- 0.  Motion 

carried. 

Motion:  Heher to post the Public Services Director position.  Second McPadden.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

6.6 Pay Equity Implementation Report 

Hayes reviewed the Pay Equity Implementation Report.  Information is taken from the 2016 

positions and wages.  The City is in compliance.  

Motion:  Stolz to approve the Pay Equity Implementation Report.  Second McPadden.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion 

carried. 

 

7.   Council Member’s Reports 

Heher:  Planning Commission held Public Hearings in December regarding Sign Ordinance, Adult Usage 

Ordinance and Storage Pods.  Parks reviewed 2016 goals and set goals for 2017. 

 

McPadden:  EDC will meet this Wednesday to discuss branding/logo.  A lot of interest in businesses 

wanting to come to NYA. 

 

Stolz:  None 

 

8.   Mayor’s Report  

Curfman now in compliance.  Centerpoint Energy increase in delivery charge, approximately $2.00 a 

month.  Thank you to the Public Services Department for working in the bitter cold getting our streets 

plowed.  Reminder of Nuisance Ordinance regarding pets:  owners must pick up and dispose of waste. 

 

      9.   Adjournment 

Motion:  McPadden to adjourn at 7:25pm.  Second Heher.  Vote 4 – 0.  Motion carried.   

 

  

Sincerely Submitted: 

 

        

______________________________________ 

Kelly Hayes, City Clerk/Treasurer  

       ____________________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

 

 

UPCOMING EVENTS 

January 11   Economic Development Commission – 6:30 p.m. 

January 12   Senior Advisory Committee – 9:00 a.m. 

January 16  Martin Luther King Jr. Day – City Offices Closed 

January 18   Parks and Rec. Commission – 5:30 p.m.; Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. 

January 19  Chamber of Commerce Annual Banquet – Oak Grove Senior Residence 

January 23   City Council Workshop – 6:00 p.m. 

January 23  EDA and City Council – 7:00 p.m. 

 





















































Cultural Services LLC 

 
 
Architectural History Evaluation of the Pavilion (CR-
NWC-009), 21 Main Street East, 
Norwood Young America, Carver County, Minnesota 
 
 
Submitted to: 
City of Norwood Young America 
310 Elm Street West 
Norwood Young America, MN 55368 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Report Author: 
Andrea C. Pizza, Ph.D. 

 
November 2016 

207 4th Avenue North 

South St. Paul, MN 55075 

 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page i  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

The City of Norwood Young America (City) received a Minnesota Historical and Cultural Heritage Grant for 
a qualified historian to complete an evaluation of the pavilion building in Willkommen Memorial Park, 
known locally as the Pavilion (CR-NWC-009), to determine its eligibility for listing in the National Register 
of Historic Places (National Register).  The City contracted with Deco Cultural Services LLC (Deco) to conduct 
the evaluation.  The evaluation, which included a literature review and field documentation, was performed 
in July-September of 2016.  Andrea Pizza served as Principal Investigator. 
 
The Pavilion is the building with which the annual festival of Stiftungsfest, a community-defining 
recreational and social event in the history of (Norwood) Young America, is most closely associated.  The 
Singers’ Hall, which was the building most closely affiliated with the originators of the festival, has been 
demolished, and although the Pavilion did not exist until 40 years into the yearly tradition, it has been the 
primary site of dancing and other indoor functions of the celebration for the last 117 years.  As a key location 
of the festival’s activities, the Pavilion meets Criterion A at the local level in the area of 
entertainment/recreation.  Due, however, to alterations carried out in 2005-2006, the historical character of 
the building is not sufficiently intact to convey the historical-era relationship with the festival to an observer.  
It is therefore recommended as not eligible for listing in the National Register. 
  



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page ii  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

CONTENTS 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY ............................................................................................................................................................... i 

INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 STRUCTURE OF THE REPORT ...................................................................................................................................... 1 

METHODS ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2.1 LITERATURE SEARCH ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.2 FIELD SURVEY .................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

HISTORIC CONTEXTS .......................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.1 YOUNG AMERICA, 1856-1970 .................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.2 THE PAVILION IN WILLKOMMEN MEMORIAL PARK ......................................................................................... 7 

EVALUATION ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

4.1 DESCRIPTION .................................................................................................................................................................. 16 

4.2 SIGNIFICANCE ................................................................................................................................................................ 23 

4.3 INTEGRITY ........................................................................................................................................................................ 24 

4.4 RECOMMENDATION ................................................................................................................................................... 26 

REFERENCES CITED ........................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

 
  



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page iii  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

FIGURES 

Figure 1.   Location of Property ..................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Figure 2. The Pavilion (right), with grandstand and baseball diamond, 1900-1910, looking north- 
                  northeast ........................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
Figure 3.   The Pavilion, circa 1900, looking southwest ....................................................................................................... 9 
Figure 4.   The Pavilion, bandstand, and food stand, 1914, looking southwest ..................................................... 10 
Figure 5.   The Pavilion, 1921 ...................................................................................................................................................... 11 
Figure 6.   View showing the Pavilion with added lunch counter, circa 2004, looking southwest .................. 12 
Figure 7.   View showing interior of added lunch counter, undated ........................................................................... 13 
Figure 8.   The Pavilion after tornado, 1953 .......................................................................................................................... 14 
Figure 9.   The Pavilion undergoing restoration, 1953 ...................................................................................................... 14 
Figure 10.   Representative homes, view from the Pavilion, looking north ................................................................. 16 
Figure 11.   Hamburger stand, view from the Pavilion, looking east ............................................................................. 17 
Figure 12.   Playground set, looking east.................................................................................................................................. 17 
Figure 13.   Old Town in the Park, view from the Pavilion, looking south ................................................................... 18 
Figure 14.   The Pavilion, looking west-northwest ................................................................................................................ 18 
Figure 15.   Interior of 1920 section, looking west ................................................................................................................ 19 
Figure 16.   Area of former raised stage, looking northwest ............................................................................................ 20 
Figure 17.   View of wall reconfiguration, looking south .................................................................................................... 20 
Figure 18.   Bar in northeast corner of 1920 section (restrooms behind wall), looking northeast .................... 21 
Figure 19.   View of 1900 section from entry, looking west .............................................................................................. 22 
Figure 20.   View of new walls and kitchen in southeast corner of 1900 section, looking east .......................... 22 
Figure 21.   Interior of east entry, looking east ...................................................................................................................... 23 
 

 
 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 1  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

INTRODUCTION 

The City of Norwood Young America (City) received a Minnesota Historical and Cultural Heritage Grant for 
a qualified historian to complete an evaluation of the pavilion building in Willkommen Memorial Park, 
known locally as the Pavilion (CR-NWC-009), located at 21 Main Street East (Figure 1), to determine its 
eligibility for listing in the National Register of Historic Places (National Register).  The City contracted with 
Deco Cultural Services LLC (Deco) to conduct the evaluation, which was carried out in July to October of 
2016. 

1.1 STRUCTURE OF THE REPORT 

The next chapter describes the methods used in the investigation and is followed by a chapter that provides 
detailed historic contexts for the property.  The subsequent chapter provides an evaluation of the National 
Register eligibility of the property, examining the significance of the property within the framework of the 
historic contexts and its integrity, based on the results of the field survey.  

  



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 2  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

      

FIGURE 1.  LOCATION OF PROPERTY  

The Pavilion 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 3  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

METHODS 

The objective of the architectural history evaluation was to determine whether the Pavilion is eligible for 
listing in the National Register.  National Register eligibility is based in part on the four significance criteria 
outlined below, although architectural history properties typically are not significant under Criterion D: 
 

 Criterion A – association with events or patterns that have made a significant contribution in 
our past;  

 Criterion B – association with the lives of persons significant in our past;  
 Criterion C – embodiment of the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of 

construction; or representation of the work of a master; possession of high artistic values; or 
representation of a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack 
individual distinction; and  

 Criterion D – potential to yield information important to prehistory or history (National Park 
Service 2002) 

 
Eligibility additionally requires that the property have the ability to convey its significance based on seven 
aspects of integrity identified by the National Park Service (2002):  location, design, setting, materials, 
workmanship, feeling, and association. 
 
All work was conducted per the Guidelines for History/Architecture Projects in Minnesota, (Minnesota State 
Historic Preservation Office [SHPO] 2010), and The Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for 
Archeology and Historic Preservation (National Park Service 1983). 

2.1 LITERATURE SEARCH 

The City provided Deco with a booklet of newspaper articles, photographs, and other printed materials 
pertaining to the Pavilion compiled in 2004 and the spring of 2016 by Steve Olson, a volunteer historian.  
Mr. Olson additionally provided Deco with several historical-period images of the Pavilion which he 
obtained during the course of his study.  Deco conducted a literature search to obtain additional 
information on the history of Young America generally and the Pavilion specifically, which was used in 
conjunction with that provided by the City and Mr. Olson to develop detailed, relevant historic contexts.  
Sources reviewed include newspaper articles indexed and held at the Carver County Historical Society; issues 
of The Norwood Times and Carver County News, which were the newspapers serving the city of Young 
America at the time that the Pavilion was constructed; the meeting minutes of the Young America Village 
Council for relevant periods dating between 1899 and 1950; the meeting minutes of the Young America 
Fire Department for the years 1938 to 1941; the meeting minutes of the Pioneer Maennerchor for the years 
1898 to 1900; histories of Carver County held at the Minnesota Historical Society; and a volume of historical 
information on Young America compiled for the 125th anniversary of the city (Young America Book 
Committee [Book Committee] 1981).  No other general histories of the city of Young America are held by 
the Carver County Historical Society or the Willkommen Heritage and Preservation Society of Norwood 
Young America. 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 4  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

2.2 FIELD SURVEY 

A survey of the property was performed on August 12, 2016.  Andrea Pizza served as Principal Investigator 
and conducted the fieldwork.  The exterior and the interior were examined and documented in detail to 
generate accurate descriptions and to evaluate the ability of the property to convey any potential historical 
significance, based on the seven aspects of integrity as defined by the National Park Service (2002):  location, 
design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association.  Documentation consisted of field notes 
and digital photography.  In addition, information on the history of changes to the building occurring since 
its construction in 1900 was verbally provided at this time to Deco by the former mayor of the city and 
current head of the Wilkommen Heritage and Preservation Society of Norwood Young America, LaVonne 
Kroells, and the Norwood Young America City Administrator, Steve Helget.  
  



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 5  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

HISTORIC CONTEXTS 

The Pavilion is associated generally with the SHPO statewide context Railroads and Agricultural 
Development, 1870-1940.  The historic contexts that follow were developed to assist in the evaluation of the 
Pavilion by providing a more detailed framework for the evaluation of its historical significance. 

3.1 YOUNG AMERICA, 1856-1970 

The village of Young America had its start in 1856 when it was platted in Sections 11 and 12 of T115N, 
R26W, by a dentist, Dr. R. M. Kennedy, and James Slocum, Jr., who had been born in Pennsylvania and New 
York, respectively.  Kennedy and Slocum, in that year, built a one-story log house, a store, and a saw mill, 
all firsts for the future city, and the plat was filed in March of 1857.  Young America was located amidst what 
was largely farmland being worked by German immigrants; the 1857 territorial census enumerates 31 out 
of 32 households headed by farmers in T115N, R26W, and 24 of these farmers as having been born in 
German states (“Young America,” original plat dated March 18, 1857; Minnesota Territorial Census 1857; 
Neill 1882:398; Holcombe and Bingham 1915:246).  As these farmers engaged increasingly in the growing 
of wheat, Kennedy and Slocum saw fit to add a grist mill to their operations in 1859, but it was destroyed 
by fire three years later, in the same year that Kennedy passed away.  Additionally, a small log schoolhouse 
accommodating approximately 12 students was constructed in the village during this early period of 
Euroamerican settlement (Holcombe and Bingham 1915:245-246). 
 
Around the end of the Civil War came the next industrial operations to the village, a new combination saw 
and grist mill built in 1865 by brothers Christian, Julius, and William Ackermann, and a brewery built the 
following year (Holcombe and Bingham 1915:246).  Because the village was not incorporated until 1879, its 
residents are not enumerated separately from the rest of Young America Township in the census of 1870; 
however, listed non-farming occupations such as hotelkeeper, merchant, storekeeper, boot and shoe 
manufacturer, blacksmith, cooper, carpenter, and tailor (United States Bureau of the Census [U.S. Census] 
1870) were likely carried out in a concentrated commercial area within the village, and in combination with 
the local industries point to a solid economic foundation for Young America by that time.   
 
A village, of course, is not all business and economics, and the 1860s and 1870s additionally witnessed new 
cultural, recreational, and entertainment developments in Young America.  One of these was the 1861 
establishment of the Pioneer Maennerchor, a local German men’s choir that would regularly practice, 
perform at events, and participate in competitions with other choirs (Gould 2016).  Ten members of the 
Maennerchor, cutting down the trees in nearby woods and sawing them into lumber themselves, built a hall 
in 1868, appropriately dubbed “Singers Hall,” on the east side of town, which would be used for several 
decades for “dancing and meeting purposes” (The Waconia Patriot 1956; The Norwood Times 1956).  
Fraternal organizations “The Sons of Herman” and “Humboldt Lodge No. 132, A. F. & A. M. of Minnesota” 
started lodges in the area during the late 1870s.   
 
The most noteworthy of such developments, however, was the 1861 establishment of Stiftungsfest (the 
German word for “Founders’ Day Festival”), a yearly community festival that continues to be held today and 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 6  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

therefore maintains the designation of the longest continuously running festival in Minnesota history, one 
in which the community takes great pride.  Stiftungsfest was begun by the Pioneer Maennerchor in the year 
that the group formed, as a picnic for its members and families, and it would later become a celebration for 
the entire community, with a particular focus on Young America’s strongly German heritage.   
 
In 1879, the year in which the village of Young America was incorporated, the Minneapolis and St. Louis 
Railway Company built a line under a separately incorporated entity called the Minneapolis and St. Louis 
Railway – Pacific Extension.  The line, which was constructed through Young America on its way from 
Hopkins Junction to Winthrop, Minnesota, was the initial phase of a westward extension that would allow 
the Minneapolis and St. Louis access to the wheat traffic being generated in western Minnesota and Dakota 
Territory (Schmidt et al. 2007:45-46).  In the following year, the predominantly German-American population 
of the newly incorporated village numbered 151, and additional shops and services could be found in the 
village, the census indicating the presence of an architect, baker, harness maker, hardware dealer, saloon 
keeper, and two butchers in addition to the occupations noted ten years prior (U.S. Census 1880). 
 
Like most Minnesota small towns through which railroads were built during the late nineteenth century, the 
village of Young America was bolstered by the presence of the line, and its population nearly doubled in 
the decade years between 1880 and 1890, after which it remained fairly steady, hovering around 300 
(Holcombe and Bingham 1915:220; U.S. Census 1920).  A circa-1906 account reprinted in The Waconia 
Patriot (1956) paints a picture of a village not wanting in the areas of either infrastructure, business, or 
recreation.  It cites gravel ballasted streets, gas lamps, a fire department having a gasoline powered fire-
engine and other modern equipment, a hospital, its newspaper, The Young America Eagle, and telephone 
connections to the village of Norwood;  numerous businesses, including three general stores, a hardware 
store, a furniture store, two millinery shops, two implement stores, a lumber yard, a shoe repair shop, a 
roller mill and elevator, a creamery, a bank, a candy store, a blacksmith shop, two stock buyers, a 
veterinarian, a butcher shop, four saloons, a harness shop, two hotels, a molasses factory, two dray and 
livery lines, two threshing rigs, a sawmill, and two dressmakers; and amusements provided by a bowling 
alley, shooting gallery, Singers Hall, a brass band, an orchestra, and the city park, with its baseball diamond, 
grandstand, and dancing pavilion.  Another venue for the latter type of activities was the City Hall building, 
after it was constructed in 1909.  The second floor was used for “basketball, sheepshead tournaments, 
bullhead fry, bingo, wedding receptions, graduation receptions, and firemen receptions” (Book Committee 
1981:46).  The building, a relatively prominent two-story brick building with three-story corner tower, 
additionally served as a physical expression of the permanence that the town had attained. 
 
From 1910 forward, Young America carried on in the vein of a small town, without any significant 
fluctuations in its population until it started to increase gradually, though not consistently, beginning 
between 1930 and 1940, reaching 611 residents in 1970.  The 125th Anniversary of the City of Young America, 
Minn., 1856-1981 does not indicate any particularly dominant business or industry in Young America 
between 1910 and 1970, but rather demonstrates a continuing pattern of a complement of businesses that 
provided for a solid small-town economy into the late twentieth century (Book Committee 1981:17-49, 78-



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 7  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

85).  On January 1, 1997, the city of Young America officially merged with its close neighbor to the south, 
Norwood, to form the city of Norwood Young America. 

3.2 THE PAVILION IN WILLKOMMEN MEMORIAL PARK 

The original town plat for Young America filed in 1857 set aside two blocks, 14 and 30, for parks, with Block 
30 located to the south of and separated from Block 14 by three blocks.  Neither location, however, was 
originally used for the village park, which was instead located in the southeast part of town adjacent to 
where the Minneapolis and St. Louis track would eventually run, in what is known today as the Shady Lane 
Addition (North West Publishing Company 1898; Book Committee 1981:46).  Then, according to 125th 
Anniversary of the City of Young America, Minn., 1856-1981, “As the community grew it became necessary 
to have a larger area and, therefore, land was acquired at the west end of Main Street” (Book Committee 
1981:46).  At some time, therefore, prior to 1900, a park was established within the originally platted location 
of Block 14 as well as extending south to the northern portion of Block 17.  It has been known since 1947 
as Memorial Park, but was originally called simply City Park (Book Committee 1981:46). 
 
On June 11, 1900, the Young America Village Council (Council) passed resolutions to build a dancing 
pavilion, today’s Pavilion, in the park and to appoint a two-person committee to see to it that the first 
resolution was carried out.1  The Pavilion appears to have replaced an earlier one in the village, whether in 
the City Park or the original park, as a resolution had been passed a full year earlier to “buy 1 ½ doz. 
Common chairs for the Pavilion in the Park” (Council Minutes, June 16, 1899).  Although another resolution 
was passed on June 19, 1900, to appoint another two-person committee to hire labor to build the 
foundation and floor for the new pavilion, the council must have determined that it had gotten ahead of 
itself, because later that month, a “special mass meeting of the citizens of th[e] village was held at the Engine 
House for the purpose of deciding whether to build a dancing pavilion in [the] Park” (Council minutes, 
undated, between June 16 and July 2, 1900).  The motion to build then passed.  Construction of the 
foundation and floor of the building was either already in progress or carried out quickly shortly thereafter, 
as the council approved payment on July 2 to A. Quast for having laid the foundation, and on July 11 to 
four other individuals, A. F. Leuke, Wm. Roth, F. F. Grist, and Christ Hansen for “labor on the pavilion floor” 
(Council minutes, July 11, 1900).  The floor had been finished no later than July 4, with The Norwood Times 
(1900a) reporting that during the Independence Day celebration, “The pavilion though not completed 
afforded a good floor for those who enjoy dancing.” 
 
Plans and specifications of unknown authorship for the superstructure of the Pavilion were held at E. O. 
Bachman’s drugstore for those interested in submitting a construction bid until July 18.  No bids, however, 
were received; therefore, the deadline was extended by a week, during which time plans and specifications 
were held at J. H. Rausch’s store.  On July 25th, after reviewing the two bids received, the council selected 
August Zellmann’s lower bid of $886.00, and his contract was approved on August 6.  Zellmann completed 
construction work on the building during the last week of August 1900, just in time for the 40th Stiftungsfest 

                                                      
1 Council Minutes are not cited in the body of the report except after quotations.  A full listing of dates for relevant 
minutes is provided under References Cited. 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 8  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

celebration held on September 2 (The Norwood Times 1900b, 1900c), although the painting of the building 
would await the decision of a committee appointed on September 3rd on the color to be used.   
 
As originally constructed, the Pavilion was a one-story, hipped-roofed, wood-frame building 52 feet east-
west by 40 feet north-south, rectangular with a small, slightly narrower, projecting gable-roofed section on 
the east end (Figure 2).  Although the Village Council minutes indicate the construction of a foundation, its 
composition is not indicated by historical documentation, and it may have been only underneath the dance 
floor, given that the foundation and floor were completed in advance of the superstructure.  A photograph 
of the original construction shows the superstructure to be raised slightly off the ground on what appear 
to be boulders (Figure 3).  The wall framing was exposed and painted in a dark brown to contrast with the 
lighter-painted wood of the walls between the studs, and the walls appear to have been formed of vertical  
 
 

 
Courtesy of the Alice Schrupp Collection, 1900-1910 

FIGURE 2.  THE PAVILION (RIGHT), WITH GRANDSTAND AND BASEBALL DIAMOND, 1900-1910, LOOKING NORTH-
NORTHEAST 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 9  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

 
Courtesy of the Carver County Historical Society 

FIGURE 3.  THE PAVILION, CIRCA 1900, LOOKING SOUTHWEST 

 
wood planking.  With the exception of the doorways, on the main (west) section of the building, these 
lighter-painted walls comprised four sections from top to bottom:  the lowest, large immovable section; a 
similarly sized section with a dark brown-painted wood sill, which could be dropped all the way down in 
front of the lower section to expose an opening; a small band with dark brown-painted wood lintel and sill 
and divided by dark brown-painted muntins into small panes, at least some of which appear to have been 
clerestory windows or convertible to clerestory windows (see Figure 3); and a closed, immovable section at 
the top.  Dropping down all of the larger movable sections allowed for the Pavilion to be converted to an 
open-air facility.  Three doorway-width wooden stairs led up to a wood pedestrian door on the north side 
of the building.  No available images from this period show the south or west walls.  The precise 
configuration and operation of fenestration on the east gable-roofed section are not clear from early 
photos, but it appears narrower drop-down openings may have been located on its north side, and possibly 
a large overhead or sliding opening on the east end (see Figure 3).  Near the upper portion of the walls, 
scrollwork knee braces, also in dark brown, extended from the lintels of the small band to the soffits.  Photos 
of the original construction show a roof clad in what look like shingles, but the material is not discernible. 
 
When the Pavilion was constructed, the north part of the park where it was built was planted in trees, while 
the south part of the block was cleared and occupied by a baseball field, with a rudimentary diamond 
located on the west side of the park (see Figure 2).  Around the same time that the Pavilion was built, though 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 10  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

a precise year(s) has not been identified, an octagonal bandstand and a food stand were constructed just 
south-southeast of it (Figure 4).  Not long after the Pavilion was built, a grandstand was constructed at the 
northwest corner of the baseball diamond near home plate to accommodate spectators (The Waconia 
Patriot 1956; Book Committee 1981:46) (see Figure 2). 
 
The popularity of the Pavilion during community events was such that an addition was constructed on the 
west end of the building in June of 1920, more than doubling its length to 122 feet (Young America Eagle 
1920a) (Figure 5).  Although a March 1920 council meeting set rental of the Pavilion by outside parties at 
$5.00, no mention of the expansion was made in the minutes of the council in 1920 or the two years prior, 
but at two meetings in August of 1920, several claims were allowed and ordered paid in association with 
the expansion.  These claims consisted of one for street and hall lighting, nine for labor, one for hardware, 
one for wiring, one for painting, and one for partial payment in the sum of $1000 to the Stearns Lumber 
Co. for material used.  Even with the additional 2,800 square feet, the 60th Stiftungsfest held toward the end 
of August saw “every inch of floor space . . . filled,” the Young America Eagle (1920b) noting that “everyone 
seemed to have a good time.” 
 
By this time, membership in the Pioneer Maennerchor had been waning for several years.  In 1938, reduced 
to six members, the group voted to disband the choir and to turn over Singers Hall and its grounds (Lot 10 
of Block 19) as well as the “rights to carry on the Stiftungsfest picnic” (Young America Fire Department [FD] 
 
 

 
Courtesy of the Erich Perschon Collection 

FIGURE 4.  THE PAVILION, BANDSTAND, AND FOOD STAND, 1914, LOOKING SOUTHWEST 

Pavilion Food stand Bandstand 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 11  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

 
FIGURE 5.  THE PAVILION, 1921 (IMAGE REPRODUCED FROM MICROFILM OF THE WACONIA PATRIOT; PHOTOGRAPH 
ALSO PUBLISHED IN THE YOUNG AMERICA EAGLE MAY 20, 1921) 

 
meeting minutes, April 7, 1938) to the fire department (Book Committee 1981:12-13).  The fire department 
served as the city’s de facto recreation department in addition to its firefighting duties; their records, which 
date back to 1894, show that they sponsored many of the community celebrations and social events (Book 
Committee 1981:53).  Their meeting minutes from March 2, 1939, for example, show that they had a 
committee on bowling alleys to study cost and potential locations, and a dance committee to organize 
summer dances, which doubled as a general arrangements committee for summer picnics.  The 
management of Stiftungsfest was therefore in keeping with their ancillary function. 
 
In July of 1939, the fire department added to their agenda the repair of the Pavilion, including the installation 
of new floors, and they motioned to appoint a committee to meet with the city council in this regard.  No 
record of this meeting is found in either the fire department or city council minutes, but in February of 1940, 
a “motion was made and second [sic] to loan the dance committee necessary money out of the department’s 
regular fund to help pay for repairs and a new floor if the committee decides to have a new floor put in the 
pavilion” (FD minutes, July 6, 1939).  The next month, the fire department voted to provide $1,500 to pay 
for the floor and all necessary repairs in the Pavilion.  “Repairs” turned out to include a fair amount of 
remodeling, which was accomplished by early May of 1940.  A newspaper article announcing the grand 
opening of the building indicates that in addition to the laying of a brand new maple floor, changes included 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 12  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

moving the bandstand from the south side to the west end2, with a raised platform built to accommodate 
this purpose; construction of a lunch counter and bar in an expanded east section (Figures 6 and 7), which 
could be accessed from the interior and exterior, surrounded on the exterior by a concrete walk; moving 
the entrance to the Pavilion from the east end to the south side and installing a concrete apron by which 
to access it from the sidewalk; rewiring, redecoration, and repainting of the interior; improving the interior 
benches along the sides of the dance floor; and moving the checkroom to the previous location of the 
bandstand, presumably near the new entrance.  The same article indicated that the fire department was 
going to hold dances there throughout the summer (Young America Eagle 1940).  Around the time of the 
remodel, the village agreed to lease the building to the fire department, providing the fire department a 
major source of department funds through proceeds from Stiftungsfest, which they carried on with great 
success; their annual dance; and, presumably, rental of the facility (Book Committee 1981:54). 
 
In the spring of 1947, a joint effort was carried out by the Council, FD, and Young America’s baseball team 
to upgrade the City Park’s baseball facilities.  The result was that the baseball diamond was relocated to the 
east side of the park, and a new grandstand with restrooms and a dressing room with showers for the 
players underneath it was constructed, as were dugouts.  On June 15, the park was “dedicated as a memorial 
to all of Young America’s war veterans, living or dead” (Young America Eagle 1947), and from that point 
forward was named Memorial Park.  It is unclear when “Willkommen” was appended to the front of the 
name. 
 
On the afternoon of March 21, 1953, a tornado struck the city, and with particular fury in Memorial Park.  
Lighting towers that had been installed for the baseball field shortly after the park’s dedication bent and 
snapped, the grandstand roof rotated and relocated onto its seats, and one of the dugouts upturned, along 
 
 

 
FIGURE 6.  VIEW SHOWING THE PAVILION WITH ADDED LUNCH COUNTER, CIRCA 2004, LOOKING SOUTHWEST 

                                                      
2 Presumably the separate octagonal bandstand had been demolished sometime prior.  Due to tree cover, aerial 
photographs are not useful in identifying a general timeframe for this occurrence. 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 13  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

 
Courtesy of the Wilkommen Heritage and Preservation Society 

FIGURE 7.  VIEW SHOWING INTERIOR OF ADDED LUNCH COUNTER, UNDATED 

 
 
with several trees in the park.  The Pavilion was pushed off its foundation and moved approximately seven 
feet into two trees on the north side (Figure 8), which despite any damage they inflicted were somewhat of 
a boon in that they held the superstructure upright, many locals surmising that it would otherwise have 
been a total loss.  With $12,000 worth of damage having occurred, the fate of the Pavilion initially was 
undecided, but the building was insured, and the city opted for reconstruction work.  This work, which 
included a new foundation, was carried out in April of 1953 (The Norwood Times 1953a, 1953b; Olson 2004-
2016) (Figure 9). 
 
The Pavilion continued to be used for all manner of events by the residents of Young America and outside 
parties, including holiday celebrations, dances, receptions, reunions, and other various types of parties, but 
the Pavilion is particularly linked in the consciousness of the townspeople to the tradition of Stiftungsfest, 
of which it has been a part since it was constructed in 1900.  The park overall serves as the main festival 
grounds, and in 1992, to more strongly convey the German heritage aspect of the gathering, the city 
constructed a row of buildings and attached picnic shelter called “Old Town in the Park,” located between 
the Pavilion and the baseball field, as well as some new walkways, with the complex meant to represent an 
old German town (The Norwood Young America Times 1992; Stiftungsfest, Inc. 2016). 
 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 14  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

 
FIGURE 8.  THE PAVILION AFTER TORNADO, 1953 (IMAGE REPRODUCED FROM MICROFILM OF THE NORWOOD TIMES) 

 

 
Courtesy of Steve Olson 

FIGURE 9.  THE PAVILION UNDERGOING RESTORATION, 1953 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 15  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

The affinity of the residents of Norwood Young America for the Pavilion became strongly evident in the 
early 2000s when the city was planning to construct a new community building and demolish the Pavilion.  
After open house meetings in 2002 and 2003, on the basis of citizen response, the Norwood Young America 
City Council (City Council) voted in 2003 to instead rehabilitate the Pavilion.  With funding needed to carry 
out the rehabilitation as a single effort per a structural engineer’s recommendation, local citizens and other 
interested parties formed “Save the Pavilion, Inc.” in 2004, a non-profit organization to “assist the City 
Council by raising public awareness and seeking donations to help preserve the pavilion” (Save the Pavilion 
brochure 2004, provided by the City of Norwood Young America).  Their platform was that the “pavilion is 
a valuable link to the unique history of the Stiftungsfest Celebration [and] its antiquity would continue to 
provide a breathtaking example of the community’s rich heritage” (Save the Pavilion flier, provided by the 
City of Norwood Young America).  In February of 2005, the City Council approved a restoration proposal, 
but one that would still rely heavily on donations and volunteer labor.  In July of that year, the Preservation 
Alliance of Minnesota named the Pavilion as one of its “Ten Most Endangered Historic Places.”3 At that 
point, however, over one quarter of a million dollars had been donated in time, labor, and materials, the 
majority of businesses and individuals responsible based in Norwood Young America, and the restoration 
was underway. 
 
The restoration, completed in 2006, included replacement of the foundation, roof covering, doors, and the 
wall material between the studs, the latter necessary due to the replacement of the drop-down window 
system with 4/1 double-hung sash.  New soffit supports were milled to be identical to the original and 
installed.  Sliding doors on the south and west sides of the building were replaced with industrial metal 
pedestrian double doors.  The lunch counter/bar addition that had been built on the east end by the fire 
department in 1940 was removed, and a new, smaller entry addition constructed there to approximate the 
original.  On the interior, walls were constructed within the east portion of the dance floor to accommodate 
the new coat room, restrooms, and kitchen.  A bar was built in the southeast corner of the resultant smaller 
open floor.  The raised platform for the bandstand at the west end of the building was taken out, and tile 
laid to demarcate the stage area.  An HVAC system, new wiring, light fixtures, and ceiling fans were installed 
as well. 
  

                                                      
3 Some confusion about the property’s history at this time resulted in the press release for the “Ten Most Endangered 
Historic Places” stating that the Pavilion was called the Singers Pavilion and was built in 1876 (Norwood Young America 
Times 2005). 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 16  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

EVALUATION 

4.1 DESCRIPTION 

The Pavilion is located on the south side of E Main Street between Central Avenue S and 1st Avenue SE in 
Willkommen Memorial Park.  The park is surrounded on all sides by single-family homes dating from the 
turn of the twentieth century through the 1950s , with the exception of the former city library building (now 
housing the Willkommen Heritage and Preservation Society of Norwood Young America), which is located 
on the northeast corner of E Main Street and 1st Avenue NE (Figure 10).  Within the park, the Pavilion’s 
surroundings include an octagonal hamburger stand constructed circa 2006 to its east, a modern 
playground with picnic table to its west, and the “Old Town in the Park” to its south, beyond which is the 
baseball field (Figures 11 through 13). 
 
The Pavilion is a one-story, hip-roofed building, generally rectangular in plan (Figure 14).  A gable-roofed, 
projecting entry is centered on the east end and does not span the full width of the building, while a gabled 
dormer is located above the doors on the north side.  The roof, covered in asphalt shingles installed in 2005, 
incorporates wood fascia and soffits, along with the previously noted replaced-in-kind soffit supports.  The 
walls of the building are clad in a beige-painted, tongue-and-groove beadboard, perhaps a wood 
composite, covering the previously exposed studs.  A wood stringcourse runs along all four walls of the 
exterior, just above the windows and doors, and corner boards are located at all corners of the building. 
 
 

 
FIGURE 10.  REPRESENTATIVE HOMES, VIEW FROM THE PAVILION, LOOKING NORTH 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 17  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

 
FIGURE 11.  HAMBURGER STAND, VIEW FROM THE PAVILION, LOOKING EAST 

 
 

 
FIGURE 12.  PLAYGROUND SET, LOOKING EAST 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 18  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

 

 
FIGURE 13.  OLD TOWN IN THE PARK, VIEW FROM THE PAVILION, LOOKING SOUTH 

 

 
FIGURE 14.  THE PAVILION, LOOKING WEST-NORTHWEST 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 19  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

Extending from the upper portions of some of these to the eaves are scrollwork knee braces, also 
replications of the original.  In the main section of the building (i.e., minus the projecting east entry), the 
windows to the west of the entrances on the north and south sides are paired 4/1 double-hung sash.  On 
the north side, fenestration east of the entrance includes one set of paired 4/1 double-hung sash, and a 
single 4/1 double-hung sash.  On the south side, fenestration east of the entrance consists of three sliding 
windows.  The west entrance is flanked on both sides by single 4/1 double-hung sash, while the projecting 
east entry has one set of paired 4/1 double-hung sash on its north and south sides.  All four entries contain 
metal double doors with windows and are accessed by newer concrete steps with decorative metal hand 
railings.  An accessibility ramp has been added on the north side.  All door and window openings feature 
wood trim, which along with the stringcourse, corner boards, and knee braces, have been painted dark 
brown to contrast with the beige. 
 
The interior of the building, although not fully divided in any way, may be considered in three parts from 
west to east:  the 1920 addition, the original section built in 1900, and the entry built in 2006.  The 1920 
addition is today the main hall (Figure 15).  It retains the maple floors laid in 1940.  At the west end of this 
section, centered on the doorway, the floor is ceramic tile that was laid in 2005, replacing the formerly 
present raised stage (Figure 16).  The outer walls in this section (as in the original section) have been 
substantially modified to accommodate the new door and window configuration (Figure 17).  While the 
exposed studs are original, every other stud (i.e., those that are not supporting the roof trusses) has been 
truncated and bevel cut at the top.  The paired 4/1 double-hung sash are arranged with one of the pair on 
  
 

 
FIGURE 15.  INTERIOR OF 1920 SECTION, LOOKING WEST 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 20  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

 
FIGURE 16.  AREA OF FORMER RAISED STAGE, LOOKING NORTHWEST 

 

 
FIGURE 17.  VIEW OF WALL RECONFIGURATION, LOOKING SOUTH 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 21  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

each side of and nearly adjacent to each truncated stud.  The remainder of the wall between the studs from 
the level of the windows down is sheet rock.  Above the windows, the walls are clad in beadboard similar to 
that present on the exterior.  Within this upper portion directly over each truncated stud is a new light 
fixture.  The intact studs and attached knee braces support the beams at the top of the interior walls and 
the lower chords of the roof trusses, the latter of which have basic light fixtures attached to them.  The 
ceiling above is the same beadboard used elsewhere in the building.  In the northeast corner of this section, 
a u-shaped, wooden, counter-height bar has been constructed (Figure 18). 
 
East of the bar is the section of the Pavilion originally constructed in 1900, which also retains the maple 
floors installed in 1940 (Figure 19).  Interior sheetrock walls, which do not extend all the way to the ceiling, 
have been built in the north portion of this section for restrooms (see Figure 18), and similarly in the south 
portion to accommodate a new kitchen and a new coatroom to its east near the entry (Figure 20).  These 
walls have created two hallways, one along the north side of this section to the restrooms and one down 
the center of this section to the coatroom and entry.  The framing in these sections is no longer evident 
from the main hall, but the trusses remain visible.  Beneath these trusses, but masked by the upper portions 
of the new walls are components of the HVAC system. 
 
 

 
FIGURE 18.  BAR IN NORTHEAST CORNER OF 1920 SECTION (RESTROOMS BEHIND WALL), LOOKING NORTHEAST 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 22  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

 
FIGURE 19.  VIEW OF 1900 SECTION FROM ENTRY, LOOKING WEST 

 

 
FIGURE 20.  VIEW OF NEW WALLS AND KITCHEN IN SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 1900 SECTION, LOOKING EAST 

 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 23  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

The east entry section has a ceramic tile floor in the same style as that for the stage on the west end.  The 
walls are sheetrock, and exposed wood posts, beams, and knee braces in the corners mimic those in the 
rest of the building (Figure 21).  The entry features a closed ceiling of the same beadboard used in the 
earlier sections, from which a 1920s light fixture has been suspended.  The light fixture historically hung in 
the Singers’ Hall and was salvaged for use in the Pavilion. 
 
 

 
FIGURE 21.  INTERIOR OF EAST ENTRY, LOOKING EAST 

 

4.2 SIGNIFICANCE 

The Pavilion does not have any strong associations with a specific individual.  It therefore does not meet 
Criterion B. 
 
The Pavilion is not the work of a master, nor does it possess high artistic value.  It is of basic wood-frame 
construction without any notable architectural features, is not an outstanding example of turn-of-the-
twentieth-century vernacular architecture or park pavilion architecture, and does not incorporate any 
characteristics particularly indicative of German or other building traditions; therefore, it does not embody 
any distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction. The Pavilion therefore does not 
meet Criterion C. 
 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 24  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

The Pavilion is the building with which the annual festival of Stiftungsfest in Norwood Young America is 
most closely associated.  The Singers’ Hall, which was the building most closely affiliated with the originators 
of the festival, has been demolished, and although the Pavilion did not exist until 40 years into the yearly 
tradition, it has been the primary site of dancing and other indoor functions of the celebration for the last 
117 years.  Stiftungsfest is a community-defining social and recreational event in the history of (Norwood) 
Young America, and as a key location of the festival’s activities, the Pavilion meets Criterion A at the local 
level in the area of entertainment/recreation.  Because the celebration continues to be held today with the 
Pavilion as a primary site of festival activities, the period of significance therefore would extend from 1900 
to 1966, which marks the standard 50-year threshold for National Register significance.   

4.3 INTEGRITY 

The Pavilion meets Criterion A in the area of entertainment/recreation as a building strongly associated with 
the celebration of Stiftungsfest since 1900.  Because the Pavilion served this role as one of the elements 
comprised by City Park/(Willkommen) Memorial Park, the aspects of setting, feeling, and association are 
nearly as important with regard to the Pavilion’s integrity as those that reflect how it functioned within its 
setting during the historical period:  design, materials, and workmanship.  
 
• Location is the place where the historic property was constructed. 
 
The Pavilion is in the place where it was constructed, and it therefore has excellent integrity of location. 
 
• Design is the combination of elements that form plan, space, structure, and style of a property, including 

organization of space, proportion, scale, technology, ornamentation, and materials.  It reflects historic 
functions and technologies as well as aesthetics.  Materials are the physical elements that were 
combined or deposited during a particular period of time and in a particular pattern or configuration 
to form a historic property.  Workmanship is the physical evidence of a particular culture or people 
during any given period in history or prehistory.  It is the evidence of artisans’ labor and skill in 
constructing or altering a property.   

 
The Pavilion retains most of its original wall and roof framing from the 1900 and 1920 construction episodes, 
the exception being the truncation of the non-truss-supporting studs, and it retains the maple floor installed 
in 1940.  All materials otherwise date to 2005-2006.  For the 2005-2006 renovation, the city sought to 
replicate the original wall material of the building on the exterior.  It does not appear that beadboard was 
used in the original construction; however, this detail is one that, particularly where paint was used, may 
not be discernible in historical photographs.  Even if beadboard was not used historically, the visual effect 
of the narrow vertical wood planking has generally still been obtained by its use in the renovation.  Absent, 
however, are the exterior exposed framing and the sectioned appearance of the walls created by the drop-
down window system and band of divided panes above, all of which have been lost, changing the 
architectural character of the building.  On the interior, integrity of design, materials, and workmanship has 
additionally been compromised through the introduction of sheet rock, both on existing walls and in the 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 25  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

creation of new walls; the closing off of part of the floor through the installation of the latter; the removal 
of the raised stage; and the introduction of ceramic tile.  The continuity of the ceiling, combined with the 
hallways, allow the 1900 and 1920 sections to retain the feel of a single space; however, what would have 
been the original open dance floor, even after the 1940 renovations, has been truncated by addition of the 
sheet-rock walls. 
 
While all of these changes diminish the integrity of design, materials, and workmanship, replacement of the 
drop-down window system with double-hung sash and the surrounding alterations to both exterior and 
interior walls constitute the most severe loss in this regard.  The building, which was historically designed 
and built to be convertible to an open-air pavilion, can no longer function as such.  The culmination of 
changes to the building has resulted in poor integrity of historical design, materials, and workmanship. 
 
• Setting is the physical environment of a historic property, and includes how, not just where, the property 

is situated and its relationship to surrounding features, either natural or manmade, and open space.  It 
reflects the basic physical conditions under which a property was built and the functions it was intended 
to serve.  Association is the direct link between an important historic event or person and a historic 
property.  A property retains association if it is the place where the event or activity occurred and is 
sufficiently intact to convey that relationship to an observer.  It requires the presence of physical features 
that convey a property’s historic character. 

 
The Pavilion is located in Wilkommen Memorial Park, which is surrounded by primarily residential 
construction.  While the majority of the homes post-date the construction of the pavilion, all appear to date 
to the period of significance.  The character of Memorial Park has changed somewhat in the last 25 years, 
primarily through the construction of Old Town in the Park, which is directly outside of the Pavilion.  The 
purpose of this construction was to give the park the character of a historical German village to more 
strongly convey the German heritage aspect of Stiftungsfest.  The construction, however, is not in keeping 
with the historical character of the Pavilion’s surroundings, and it strongly registers in views from the 
building.  The octagonal hamburger stand, also within the immediate vicinity of the Pavilion, is a closed 
building with substantially different architectural characteristics and function than the original octagonal 
open bandstand, although it does evoke the latter in its form.  While the baseball field was upgraded and 
moved during the late 1940s, it is in keeping with the park’s historical elements and the Pavilion’s 
surroundings.   
 
Overall, the Pavilion’s integrity of setting and association is fair. 
 
• Feeling is a property’s expression of the aesthetic or historic sense of a particular period of time.   

 
Integrity of feeling is by and large an outgrowth of the other six aspects of integrity, as it is only logical that 
the greater the retention of a property’s composition, surroundings, and associations from a given historical 
period, the more the property will evoke the feeling of that period.  As can be surmised, therefore, from the 
discussion of the other six aspects, the Pavilion’s integrity of feeling is compromised. 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 26  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

4.4 RECOMMENDATION 

The Pavilion has been an important component of the Stiftungsfest celebration since its construction in 
1900.  Its historical character, however, is not sufficiently intact to convey either its historical function as an 
open-air pavilion nor its historical-era relationship with the community festival to an observer.  The Pavilion 
is therefore not eligible for listing in the National Register due to a loss of integrity. 
 
  



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 27  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

REFERENCES CITED 

Gould, Heidi 
2016  Stiftungsfest and Pioneer Maennerchor.  Available online at http://www.mnopedia.org/group/ 

stiftungsfest-and-pioneer-maennerchor. 
 
Holcombe, Maj. R. I. and William H. Bingham, editors 

1915  Compendium of History and Biography of Carver and Hennepin Counties, Minnesota.  Henry Taylor 
& Co., Chicago. 

 
Minnesota State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) 

1993  Tier II: Post Contact Period Contexts (1837-1945).  Preserving Minnesota: A Comprehensive 
Planning Process.  St. Paul, Minnesota: On file at the Minnesota State Historic Preservation Office, 
St. Paul, Minnesota. 

 
2010  Guidelines for History/Architecture Projects in Minnesota.  Available online at 

http://www.mnhs.org/shpo/survey/docs_pdfs/HistoryArchitectureSurveyManualOctober2010.pdf 
 
National Park Service 

1983  Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for Archeology and Historic Preservation.  
Available online at http://www.nps.gov/history/local-law/arch_stnds_0.htm. 

 
2002  How to Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation.  Available online at http:// 

www.nps.gov/nr/publications/bulletins/nrb15. 
 
North West Publishing Co. 

1898  Plat Book of Carver County, Minnesota.  North West Publishing Co., Minneapolis, MN. 
 
The Norwood Times 

1900a  Young America.  6 July. 
 
1900b  Young America.  24 August. 
 
1900c  Young America.  31 August. 
 
1953a  Storm Damages Total $19,000 At Park.  27 March. 
 
1953b  Work Started on Young Am. Pavilion.  17 April. 
 
1956  Photo of Pionier Maennerchor at Stiftungsfest in 1910.  23 August. 

 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 28  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

The Norwood Young America Times 
1992  Wilkommen Park dedication Saturday.  17 September. 

 
Olson, Steve (compiler) 

2004-2016  Booklet on the history of the pavilion.  Unpublished material.  Held at the City of Norwood 
Young America Administration Office, MN. 

 
Schmidt, Andrew J., Andrea C. Vermeer, Betsy H. Bradley, and Daniel R. Pratt 

2007  National Register of Historic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form:  Railroads in 
Minnesota, 1862-1956.  Available online at http://www.dot.state.mn.us/culturalresources/ 
railroads.html. 

 
Stiftungsfest, Inc. 

2016  About Stiftungsfest.  Available online at http://www.stiftungsfest.org/aboutus.html. 
 
United States Bureau of the Census 

1870  Ninth Population Census of the United States.  National Archives Microfilm Publications, 
Washington, D.C. 

 
1880  Tenth Population Census of the United States.  National Archives Microfilm Publications, 

Washington, D.C. 
 

1920  Fourteenth Population Census of the United States.  National Archives Microfilm Publications, 
Washington, D.C. 

 
The Waconia Patriot 

1956  Young America 50 Years Ago.  23 August. 
 
Young America Book Committee 

1981  125th Anniversary of the City of Young America, Minn., 1856-1981.  Times Print Company, 
Norwood, MN. 

 
Young America Eagle 

1920a  Will Celebrate Fourth.  18 June. 
 
1920b  Stiftungsfest Again Largely Attended.  3 September. 
 
1940  Grand Opening of Pavilion to Be Held On Sunday Evening.  3 May. 
 
1947  Dedication of Young America’s $10,000 Memorial Park to be Held Here Sunday With Appropriate 

Ceremonies.  13 June. 



 

 
National Register of Historic Places Evaluation        Page 29  
The Pavilion 
Norwood Young America, Carver County   

Young America Fire Department meeting minutes 
April 7, 1938 
March 2, 1929 
July 6, 1939 
August 3, 1939 
 
Young America Village Council meeting minutes 
June 16, 1899 
June 11, 1900 
Undated between June 11 and July 2, 1900 
July 2, 1900 
July 11, 1900 
July 18, 1900 
July 25, 1900 
August 6, 1900 
September 3, 1900 
March 29, 1920 
August 3, 1920 
August 10, 1920 
 




































































	January 23, 2016 – 6:00 p.m. Workshop; followed by EDA / City Council Meeting
	NYA Pavilion evaluation report.pdf
	MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
	CONTENTS
	FIGURES
	INTRODUCTION
	1.1 STRUCTURE OF THE REPORT

	METHODS
	2.1 LITERATURE SEARCH
	2.2 FIELD SURVEY

	HISTORIC CONTEXTS
	3.1 YOUNG AMERICA, 1856-1970
	3.2 THE PAVILION IN WILLKOMMEN MEMORIAL PARK

	EVALUATION
	4.1 DESCRIPTION
	4.2 SIGNIFICANCE
	4.3 INTEGRITY
	4.4 RECOMMENDATION

	REFERENCES CITED


